
               
 

 

AGENDA 
Regular Meeting 

August 18, 2015 - 7:30 p.m. 
 
City Council meeting packets are prepared several days prior to the meetings.  This information is reviewed 
and studied by the Councilmembers, eliminating lengthy discussions to gain basic understanding.                   
Timely action and short discussion on agenda items does not reflect lack of thought or analysis.                     
An informational packet is available for public inspection on our website at www.cityofevans.org and posted 
immediately on the bulletin board adjacent to the Council Chambers. 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. PLEDGE 
 

3. ROLL CALL   Mayor:  John Morris 
 Mayor Pro-Tem:  Jay Schaffer 
 Council:  Laura Brown 

 Mark Clark 
 Sherri Finn 
 Lance Homann 
 Brian Rudy 

 
4. RECOGNITIONS 

A. August Yard of the Month 
 
5. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION  

The City Council welcomes you here and thanks you for your time and concerns.  If you wish to 
address the City Council concerning issues not on the agenda, this is the time for you to do so.    
When you are recognized, please step to the podium, state your name and address then address City 
Council.  Your comments will be limited to two (2) minutes.  The City Council may not respond to your 
comments this evening, rather they may take your comments and suggestions under advisement and 
your questions may be directed to the appropriate staff person for follow-up.  Thank you! 

 
6. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
7. CONSENT AGENDA   

A. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 3, 2015 
B. Public Hearing – Ordinance No. 626-15 – 2nd Quarter Budget Revision      

(Second Reading) 
C. Ordinance No. 627-15 – Amending Sections of Title 9 of the Evans Municipal 

Code Concerning Panhandling In Rights-of-Way (Second Reading) 
D. Ordinance No. 628-15 – Amending Sections of Title 9 of the Evans Municipal 

Code Concerning Aggressive Panhandling (Second Reading) 
 

If you would like to address City Council, 
please place your name on the sign-up sheet  

located at the back of the council room.   
You will be recognized to speak during the  

"audience participation" portion of the agenda. 



8. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Resolution No. 24-2015 – Approving a Memorandum of Understanding 

between Weld County School District 6 and City of Evans for the Planning 
and Construction of a Non-potable Irrigation System for Prairie Heights 
Middle School 

B. Resolution No. 25-2015 – Authorizing the Application for an Energy and 
Mineral Impact Grant from the Colorado Department of Local Affairs 

C. Award of Bid - 2015 Asphalt Overlay Project 
  

9. REPORTS 
A. City Manager 
B. City Attorney 

 
10. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION (general comments) 

Please refer to the Audience Participation section listed at the beginning of the agenda for 
procedures on addressing City Council. 

 
11. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF EVANS – MISSION STATEMENT 
 

 “To deliver sustainable, citizen-driven services for the health, safety, and welfare 
of the community.” 



 
 

 
COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 
 
DATE:   August 18, 2014 
 
AGENDA ITEM:   7.A 

   
SUBJECT: Approval of the Minutes of August 3rd City Council Meeting 
 
PRESENTED BY:  City Clerk  
___________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Approval of minutes. 

 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
N/A

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
       
N/A

 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
"I move to approve the minutes as presented." 

 
 



MINUTES 
EVANS CITY COUNCIL 

Monday, August 3, 2015  
 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Morris called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 

 
PLEDGE 

 
ROLL CALL    
 
Present:   Mayor Morris, Mayor Pro-Tem Schaffer, Council Members Brown, Clark, 

Finn, Homann, and Rudy 
 
 
RECOGNITIONS 

A. City Manager’s Recognizing the A.C.E. Program Interns  
 

Aden Hogan, City Manager, and Raul Rodriguez, City Safety & Risk Management 
Specialist, and David Burns, City Emergency Preparedness Planner, recognized the 
following A.C.E. Program interns who worked for the City during the summer.  
 

 Nicholas Bates; 
 Mario Hernandez;  
 Azucena Zozaya; 
 Eduardo Arredondo;  
 Eddie Gomez; and 
 Garret Anderson (recognized, but was not present). 

 
Mayor Morris discussed the benefits of the A.C.E. Program and thanked Evans 
staff for organizing a successful program during the summer. 
 

 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION  

Laura Speer, 420 Empire Street, Evans, asked City Council about the date for 
Council’s summer town hall meeting. 
 
Mayor Morris explained why the meeting was rescheduled for August 19th. 

 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
Council Member Clark made the motion, seconded by Council Member Brown, 
to approve the agenda.  The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 
 



Evans City Council  
August 3, 2015  
Page 2 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA   

A. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of July 21, 2015 

B. Authorizing a Facility Usage Agreement With Weld County for the Evans Complex to 
Serve as a Drop-off Location during the November 3, 2015 Coordinated Election 

 
Council Member Homann amended the meeting minutes of July 21st to list himself as absent. 
 
Scott Krob, City Attorney, amended the meeting minutes to correct that the executive session 
convened for matters subject to negotiations, pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(e).   
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Schaffer made the motion, seconded by Council Member Rudy, to approve 
the Consent Agenda, as amended.  Mayor Morris and Council Member Homann abstained 
from voting.  The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof.   
 
   

NEW BUSINESS 
A. Public Hearing – Ordinance No. 626-15 – 2nd Quarter Budget Revision      
 (First Reading) 
 
 Mayor Morris opened the public hearing at 7:39 p.m. 
 

Jacque Troudt, City Finance Manager, presented Ordinance No. 626-15 for the 
adoption of the 2nd Quarter budget revision.  Ms. Troudt explained that budget 
revisions are scheduled at quarterly intervals throughout the year in order to facilitate 
a flexible and accurate City budget.  She summarized the following General Fund 
budget revisions for consideration under the Ordinance: 
 

 Expenditures for the Evans Historical Master Plan, $27,022; 
 Police department supplies and services, including replacement officer 

equipment, investigations services and software, $32,673; 
 Grant revenue and expenditures for a South Platte Sediment Transport Study, 

$225,000; 
 Expenditures to complete the South Platte River Recreation Corridor Master 

Plan, $3,150; 
 Expenditures to cover unanticipated flood related legal fees, $5,000; and 
 Revenue and expenditures to replace property related to insurance claims, 

$36,855. 
 
 
 
 



Evans City Council  
August 3, 2015  
Page 3 
 

 
Next Ms. Troudt summarized the following CIP Street Fund budget revisions: 

 
 Revenue and expenditures to replace property related to insurance claims, 

$20,406; 
 Expenditures related to the preliminary budget revision to complete the work 

on the 36th Storm Sewer project, $259,292; 
 Revenue and expenditures to upgrade a pedestrian pole, $14,142; and  
 Revenue of $665,000 and expenses of $762,100 in the Waste Water Fund to 

complete permanent repairs to the Evans Waste Water Treatment Facility, as 
approved in a prior preliminary budget revision. 
 

According to Ms. Troudt, the Storm Fund includes the following proposed revision 
items: 

 
 Expenses related to the preliminary budget revision to complete the work on 

the 36th Storm Sewer work, $272,359; 
 Grant revenue and expenses related to the Storm water Management Plan, 

$265,000; and 
 A decrease in expenses related to rescheduling the completion of a Storm 

project, of $150,000. 
 
Lastly, Ms. Troudt explained that Attachment A to the Ordinance identifies the 
detailed changes for the proposed revisions to the 2015 Budget, which are also 
summarized in the heading of the ordinance.  Attachment B includes the beginning 
balance by each fund based on audited balances.  
 
Ms. Troudt reminded the Council that the City Finance Committee reviewed the 
proposed budget revisions at their last meeting and did not recommend any changes. 
 
Mayor Morris asked for testimony in support of the Ordinance—there was none. 
 
Mayor Morris asked for testimony opposed to the Ordinance: 
 
Laura Speer expressed concerns with Council Members voting on budget revisions 
immediately following a work session where staff presented the revisions.  Ms. Speer 
asked if this policy could be changed.  She also asked about the $27,000 listed as 
grant funding for the Evans Riverside Master Plan as well as budget line items “to 
replace property related to insurance claims.” 
 
Ms. Troudt explained that the $27,000 was carried forward from grant revenue 
received in 2014 for the Evans Riverside Masterplan. 
 



Evans City Council  
August 3, 2015  
Page 4 
 

 
She also explained that the City received funds from insurance claims for both 
damaged equipment/property and for worker’s compensation claims in some cases.  
 
Mayor Morris clarified that these budget items were funds received from the City’s 
insurance company. 
 
Ms. Troudt confirmed that these budget items were funds received from the City’s 
insurance company. 
 
Mayor Morris closed the public hearing at 7:48 p.m. 
 
 
Council Member Clark made the motion, seconded by Council Member Brown, to 
approve Ordinance No. 626-15 on first reading. 
The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 
 

 
B. Ordinance No. 627-15 – Amending Sections of Title 9 of the Evans Municipal 

Code Concerning Panhandling In Rights-of-Way (First Reading) 
 

Rick Brandt, Evans Chief of Police, discussed the need for Ordinance No. 627-15, 
concerning prohibiting panhandling in the rights-of-way.  He discussed the need to 
protect both motorists and panhandlers that enter the right-of-way.  Chief Brandt 
explained that a similar Ordinance was recently adopted by the City of Greeley.  
 
Council Member Clark asked why the City cannot ban all panhandling. 
 
Chief Brandt and Scott Krob, both clarified that panhandling was a form of speech, 
which could only be regulated by municipalities according to time, place, and 
manner. 
 
Mayor Morris discussed problems with panhandling in the City and voiced his 
support for the Ordinance.  
 
Council Member Brown made the motion, seconded by Council Member Rudy,        
to approve Ordinance No. 627-15 on first reading. 
The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 

 
 

C. Ordinance No. 628-15 – Amending Sections of Title 9 of the Evans Municipal 
Code Concerning Aggressive Panhandling (First Reading) 

 
Chief Brandt, explained that this Ordinance was similar to Ordinance No. 627-15 to 



Evans City Council  
August 3, 2015  
Page 5 
 

specifically prohibit aggressive panhandling in the City.  He reminded the Council 
that municipalities can only regulate the time, place, and manner of panhandling, but 
the Ordinance would ban aggressive panhandling. 
 
Mayor Morris asked for some examples of aggressive panhandling. 
 
Chief Brant provided some examples of aggressive panhandling and explained that 
the Ordinance specifically prohibits panhandling near ATMs and public restrooms. 
 
Council Member Clark made the motion, seconded by Council Member Rudy, to 
approve Ordinance No. 628-15 on first reading. 
The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 

 
 

D. Approval of Impact Fee Study  
 

Mayor Morris explained that there were still questions from the City Council 
Members concerning the impact fee study and clarified that the agenda items related 
to the study would be moved to the regular meeting on September 1, 2015.         
Mayor Morris asked Council Members to refer any questions concerning the impact 
fees to Aden Hogan, City Manager.    

 
Mayor Morris clarified with legal counsel that a motion to continue the items was not 
necessary. 
 
Mr. Krob stated that Council did not need a motion to continue the agenda items to a 
subsequent meeting. 

 
 

E. Ordinance No. 629-15 – Adoption of Adjusted City Impact Fees                
(First Reading) 

i. Resolution No. 21-2015 – Establishing Waste Water Impact Fees 
 

(Continued by City Council to September 1, 2015)  
 
  

F. Resolution No. 22-2015 – Approval of Contract for City of Evans Stormwater 
Management Plan with Muller Engineering 

 
Chad Reischl, City Planner, addressed City Council to discuss Resolution               
No. 22-2015 to receive a $265,000 grant from the Colorado Department of Local 
Affairs’ (DOLA) CDBG-DR Program for a new Stormwater Management Plan.  
According to Mr. Reischl, the City’s last planning effort around stormwater 
management was a Comprehensive Drainage Study completed in March of 1997.  



Evans City Council  
August 3, 2015  
Page 6 
 

Since that time, the population of Evans has more than doubled (from 9,515 in 2000 
to an estimated 19,944 in 2013) and numerous commercial developments, with their 
associated parking lots, have been developed.  Considering this growth, it has 
become increasingly important for the City to provide adequate storm drainage 
facilities for its existing developments as well as for new developments.  
 
Mr. Reischl explained that after a successful RFP process, staff has chosen Muller 
Engineering Company Inc. to complete this necessary planning process.  
 
Mayor Morris asked for any comments or questions from City Council.  
 
Council Member Clark, made the motion, seconded by Council Member Homann, to 
approve the contract with Muller Engineering Company through the adoption of 
Resolution No. 22-2015.  The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 

 
 

G. Resolution No. 23-2015 – Approval of Contract for the South Platte River 
Sediment Transport Modeling and Feasibility Study with CDM-Smith 
 
Mr. Reischl discussed Resolution No. 23-2015 to receive a $225,000 grant from the 
Colorado Department of Local Affairs’ CDBG-DR Program for the Middle South 
Platte River Sediment Transport Modeling and Feasibility Study.  According to      
Mr. Reischl, the study will examine the movement of sediment within the river 
system and determine the feasibility of projects at Highway 85 and other choke 
points of the river to reduce flood risk in the 20 mile stretch of the South Platte near 
Evans. 
 
Mr. Reischl explained that after a successful RFP process, staff has chosen CDM-
Smith to complete this study.   
 
Council Member Homann asked how many proposals the City received for the 
project. 
 
Mr. Reischl explained that five bids were received and why CDM-Smith was 
selected as the top choice.     
 
 
Council Member Clark made the motion, seconded by Council Member Brown,        
to approve the contract with CDM-Smith through the adoption of Resolution          
No. 23-2015.  The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 

 
 
 

 



Evans City Council  
August 3, 2015  
Page 7 
 

H. Approval of Dewberry Engineering Firm – Water Master Plan Update  
 

Jessica Gonifas, Deputy City Manager, explained that the City applied for and 
received a DOLA grant in 2014 to update the current Water Master Plan.  This plan 
intends to tie water conversation and planning, water distribution system analysis, 
water transmission and coordinated water treatment into one comprehensive 
document.  This master plan will assist the City in land use, capital improvement and 
utility service planning efforts. The primary categories of the Master Plan will 
include: 

 
 Water Resources 
 Water Use and Conservation 
 Water Treatment and Transmission 
 Water Distribution 
 Support of Land Use 
 Capital Improvement Plan 

  
According to Ms. Gonifas, the City released a Request for Proposals (RFP) in May 
and received six proposals that were evaluated by the selection committee.  She 
explained the criteria of this evaluation and why Dewberry was chosen as the 
engineering firm to update the City water master plan.  

 
Mayor Morris asked when the project would be completed.  
 
Ms. Gonifas stated that the project would be completed by late 2015, or early 2016. 
 
Mayor Morris voiced his support for updating the City water master plan.  
 
Council Member Clark made the motion, seconded by Council Member Brown, to 
approve the Mayor’s signature on the professional services agreement with 
Dewberry Engineering.  The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof.  

 
 
REPORTS 

A. City Manager 
 

Mr. Hogan updated the Council about new communication methods that will be 
implemented to reach out to residents at community events.  He also talked about an 
upcoming visit from a federal inspector general under the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) to audit federal funds sent to the City for flood 
recovery.  Mr. Hogan talked about filling the Evans’ Ombudsman position and the 
benefits of having this position for City businesses.  Lastly, he provided updates 
about the following issues with the Evans Police Department: taser upgrades, new 
vehicles, and the appointment of Chief Brandt as the president of the Colorado 



Evans City Council  
August 3, 2015  
Page 8 
 

Chiefs’ Association. 
 
Council Member Homann asked the City Manager about the traffic plan for Prairie 
Heights Middle School that is opening in the fall of 2015. 
 
Chief Brandt talked about the anticipated ingress and egress from the middle school 
and the strategy by the Evans Police Department to control the heavy school traffic. 
 
Mayor Morris asked about methods to gradually reduce speeds in the City 
surrounding Prairie Heights Middle School. 
 
Discussion ensued concerning the speed limits surrounding the middle school 
location. 
 
 

B. City Attorney 
   

Mr. Krob mentioned cases he was working on, including issues involving the City 
Cemetery and personnel files from the City to the Evans Fire District.  

 
 

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
   There was no audience participation.  
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
   The meeting adjourned at 8:11 p.m. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



1 
 

 
 

 COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
  
 
DATE: August 18, 2015  
 
AGENDA ITEM:  7.B 

 
SUBJECT:   2015 Budget 2nd Revision - Ordinance No. 626-15 – Amending 

Ordinance No. 607-14 and Appropriating Sum of Revenues and Fund 
Balances for the Amended 2015 City of Evans Budget (1st Reading) 

 
PRESENTED BY:  Jacque Troudt, CPA, Finance Manager    
     
________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 

The City Council approves specific items during the year which require an amendment to the 
adopted budget as required by the City of Evans Charter (Section 7.3 & 8.6).  In this case, the 
revenues, expenditures (or expenses in enterprise funds) and transfers have been previously 
approved by the City Council.  Staff action is usually taken on these items immediately following 
Council direction.  Budget revisions are scheduled at quarterly intervals throughout the year in order 
to facilitate a flexible and accurate City budget.  
 

Ordinance No. 626-15 is the second revision to the 2015 Operating and Capital Budget.  The 
original 2015 Budget was approved by Ordinance No. 607-14 on October 21st 2014. 

  
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 

The Budget Ordinance heading summarizes the changes to revenues, expenditures, and 
transfers by fund. Some of the items have been previously approved by the City Council, those items 
requiring additional explanation will be described below. Attachment “A” identifies the details of 
each council action and Attachment “B” identifies the net impact on the revised budget. The 
following descriptions are listed in the same order as the funds on Attachment “A” and include the 
items which were not approved as a preliminary budget revision during the quarter.  

 
The General Fund includes the following proposed revision items: 
 

1.1- Expenditures for the Evans Historical Master Plan, $27,022 
1.2- Police department supplies and services, including replacement officer equipment, 

investigations services and software, $32,673 



2 
 

1.3- Grant revenue and expenditures for a South Platte Sediment Transport Study, 
$225,000 

1.4- Expenditures to complete the South Platte River Recreation Corridor Master Plan, 
$3,150 

1.5- Expenditures to cover unanticipated flood related legal fees, $5,000 
1.8- Revenue and expenditures to replace property related to insurance claims, $36,855 

 
The CIP Street Fund includes the following proposed revision items: 
 

1.7- Revenue and expenditures to replace property related to insurance claims, $20,406 
1.7- Expenditures related to the preliminary budget revision to complete the work on the 

36th Storm Sewer project, $259,292 
1.7- Revenue and expenditures to upgrade a pedestrian pole, $14,142 

 
The Waste Water Fund includes a proposal to increase revenue of $665,000 and expenses of 
$762,100 to complete permanent repairs to the Evans Waste Water Treatment Facility, as approved 
in a prior preliminary budget revision, item 1.6. 
 
Finally, the Storm Fund includes the following proposed revision items: 

1.7- Expenses related to the preliminary budget revision to complete the work on the 36th 
Storm Sewer work, $272,359 

1.3- Grant revenue and expenses related to the Storm water Management Plan, $265,000 
1.9- A decrease in expenses related to rescheduling the completion of a Storm project, of 

$150,000 
 

The Finance Committee reviewed the proposed budget revision at their last meeting and did 
not recommend any changes.  

 
Attachment “A” identifies the detailed changes for the proposed revisions to the 2015 

Budget. The details are also summarized in the heading of the appropriation ordinance.   
 
Attachment “B” includes the Beginning Balance by Fund based on audited balances.  

 
Details of all financial items are available for Council or Citizens upon request from the 

Finance Department by contacting Jacque Troudt at 970-475-1127 or jtroudt@evanscolorado.gov. 
 
 

__________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the ordinance.  
 



3 
 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
I move to approve Ordinance No. 626-15 on second reading. 

 
I move to deny approval of Ordinance No. 626-15 on second reading. 
 

 



 

   

CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 626-15 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 2015 BUDGET; INCREASING 
GENERAL FUND REVENUES BY $261,855, APPROPRIATING GENERAL 
FUND EXPENDITURES OF $329,699, INCREASING CIP STREETS FUND 
REVENUES BY $34,548, APPROPRIATING CIP STREETS FUND 
EXPENDITURES OF $293,840, INCREASING WASTE WATER FUND 
REVENUES BY $665,000, APPROPRIATING WASTE WATER FUND 
EXPENSES OF $762,100, INCREASING STORM DRAINAGE FUND 
REVENUES BY $265,000, APPROPRIATING STORM DRAINAGE FUND 
EXPENSES OF $387,359. 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 8.6 of the Evans Home Rule Charter the Council 

may make additional appropriations by ordinance during the fiscal year; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has certified that additional funds are available for 
appropriations in each fund from actual and anticipated revenues of the current year and prior 
year cash reserves; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council is advised that certain revenues, expenditures and transfers 
must be approved by ordinance. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
EVANS, COLORADO THE FOLLOWING: 
 

Section 1:  Upon the City Manager’s certification that there are current and prior year 
revenues available for appropriation in the General Fund, Capital Projects – Streets Fund, Waste 
Water Fund, Storm Drainage Fund, and the City Council hereby makes supplemental 
appropriations as itemized in Attachment “A” attached hereto. 
 

Section 2:  The City Council hereby authorizes and directs the City Manager to enter into 
such contracts and execute such documents on behalf of the City as may be necessary and 
customary to expend the funds hereby appropriated for all operations, capital projects and debt 
within this budget as amended in accordance with the requirements of the Home Rule Charter 
and the City’s Financial Policies. 
 

Section 3:  The adoption of this Ordinance will promote the health, safety and general 
welfare of the Evans community. 
 

Section 4:  If any provision of this Ordinance or portion thereof is held by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unconstitutional, such invalidity or unconstitutionality 
shall not affect any other provision which can be given effect without the invalid portion. 
 

Section 5:  All prior ordinances, resolutions, or other acts, or parts thereof, by the City of 
Evans in conflict with this Ordinance are hereby repealed, except that this repealer shall not be 



 

   2

construed to revive any previously repealed or expired act, ordinance or resolution, or part 
thereof. 
 

Section 6:  This Ordinance shall be effective following the adoption by Section 8.5 of the 
Home Rule Charter. 

 
 

PASSED and APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Evans 
on this 3rd day of August, 2015. 

 
 
CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 

 
        By:      

Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
     

City Clerk 
 
 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED ON SECOND READING this 18th day of 

August, 2015. 
 

CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 

 
        By:      

Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
     

City Clerk 



 
 
 COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
  
 
DATE:  August 18, 2015 
 
AGENDA ITEM: 7.C  

 
SUBJECT:  ORDINANCE NO. 627-15 – AMENDING SECTIONS OF       

TITLE 9 OF THE EVANS MUNICIPAL CODE CONCERNING 
PANHANDLING IN PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY (1st READING) 

 
 
PRESENTED BY: Rick D. Brandt, Chief of Police 
              
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The police department is aware through our patrols and from citizens that a number of panhandlers 
are occupying areas around major intersections within the City. In some instances, those individuals 
are occupying the median areas of divided roadways, such as along I-85, creating a dangerous 
environment for themselves and motorists. Often, these individuals walk into the traffic lanes, 
posing a risk to themselves and others. In the interest of public safety, health and welfare the City 
should regulate when, where, and how panhandlers will conduct their business. 
  
FINANCIAL SUMMARY:  
 
No financial impact  
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of amending the ordinance.  
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
 “I move to approve adopting Ordinance No. 627-15 on second reading.” 

“I move to deny the approval of adopting Ordinance No. 627-15 on second reading.” 
 

 “I move to deny the approval of Ordinance No. 516-11 on first reading.” 
 



 CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 ORDINANCE NO. 627-15 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS OF TITLE 9 OF THE 
EVANS MUNICIPAL CODE CONCERNING 

PANHANDLING IN PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Evans, Colorado, pursuant to Colorado 
statute and the Evans City Charter, is vested with the authority of administering the affairs of 
the City of Evans, Colorado; and 
 
 WHEREAS,  it is in the best interest of the City to regulate the time, place, and manner of 
certain panhandling activities in order to protect the public health, safety and welfare; and 
 
 WHEREAS, City staff and police officers have been asked to address a significant number 
of citizen complaints regarding public safety concerns associated with panhandling activities at busy 
intersections; and 
 
 WHEREAS, such activities create substantial risks to those engaged in panhandling, 
members of the traveling public and pedestrians, and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the residents of the City of Evans that this ordinance 
be enacted.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF EVANS, COLORADO: 
 

Section 1.  Section 9.16.056 of the Evans Municipal Code shall be enacted to read as follows: 
9.16.056 - Solicitation and panhandling in public rights-of-way.  

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to solicit employment, business, contributions or 
sales of any kind, or collect monies for the same, from the occupant of any vehicle 
traveling upon any street, road or highway when such solicitation or collection:  

(1) Causes the person performing the activity to enter onto the traveled portion of a 
street or highway;  

(2) Involves the person performing the activity to be located upon any median area 
that separates traffic lanes for vehicular travel in opposite directions;  

(3) Causes the traffic on the traveled portion of a street or highway to be delayed or 
impeded; or  

(4) Involves the person performing the activity to be located such that vehicles cannot 
move into a legal parking area to safely conduct the transaction.  



 2  
 

(b) It shall be unlawful for any person to solicit or attempt to solicit employment, business 
or contributions of any kind from the occupant of any vehicle on any highway included 
in the interstate system, including any entrance to or exit from such highway.  

(c) For the purposes of this Section, the traveled portion of a street or highway shall mean 
the entire width between the boundary lines of every right-of-way publicly maintained 
when any part thereof is open to the use of the public for the purpose of vehicular 
traffic; or the entire width of every way declared to be a public street or highway by 
any law of this State.  

(d) A violation of this Section is a misdemeanor infraction and shall be punishable under 
Chapter 1.16 of this Code.  
 
Section 2.   Publication and Effective Date.   This Ordinance, after its passage on final 

reading, shall be numbered, recorded, published, and posted as required by the City Charter and the 
adoption, posting, and publication shall be authenticated by the signature of the Mayor and City 
Clerk, and by the Certificate of Publication.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon final 
passage. 
 
 Section 3.     Severability.   If any article, section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of 
this Ordinance is held to be unconstitutional or invalid for any reason such decision shall not affect 
the validity or constitutionality of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.  The City Council 
hereby declares that it would have passed this ordinance and each part or parts thereof irrespective of 
the fact that any one part or parts be declared unconstitutional or invalid. 

 
 Section 4.   Repeal.   Existing ordinances or parts of ordinances covering the same matters 
embraced in this ordinance are hereby repealed and all ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent 
with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed except that this repeal shall not affect or 
prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done or committed in violation of 
any ordinance hereby repealed prior to the effective date of this ordinance. 
 
 
INTRODUCED AND PASSED AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF EVANS ON THIS 3RD DAY OF AUGUST, 2015. 

 
 
ATTEST:      CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 

 
 
______________________________________ By:      
Raegan Robb, City Clerk      John L. Morris, Mayor 
 



 3  
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED ON A SECOND READING THIS 18TH DAY OF AUGUST,   2015.  
 
 

ATTEST:      CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 
 
______________________________________ By:      
Raegan Robb, City Clerk      John L. Morris, Mayor 
 
 

 



 
 

 COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
  
 
DATE:  August 18, 2015 
 
AGENDA ITEM: 7.D  

 
SUBJECT:  ORDINANCE NO. 628-15 AMENDING SECTIONS OF TITLE 9 OF 

THE EVANS MUNICIPAL CODE CONCERNING AGGRESSIVE 
PANHANDLING (1ST READING)  

 
PRESENTED BY: Rick D. Brandt, Chief of Police 
              
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Currently no Evans Municipal ordinance addresses aggressive panhandling in the City. With an increase in 
panhandling in our region having ordinances to address the activities of individuals engaged in panhandling is 
in the interest of public health, safety and welfare.  
FINANCIAL SUMMARY:  
 
No financial impact  
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of amending the ordinance.  
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
 “I move to approve adopting Ordinance No. 628-15 on second reading.” 

“I move to deny the approval of adopting Ordinance No. 628-15 on second reading.” 
 “I move to deny the approval of Ordinance No. 516-11 on first reading.” 
 



 CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 ORDINANCE NO. 628-15 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS OF TITLE 9 OF THE 
EVANS MUNICIPAL CODE CONCERNING AGGRESSIVE PANHANDLING 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Evans, Colorado, pursuant to Colorado 
statute and the Evans City Charter, is vested with the authority of administering the affairs of 
the City of Evans, Colorado; and 
 
 WHEREAS,  it is in the best interest of the City to regulate the time, place, and manner of 
certain panhandling activities in order to protect the public health, safety and welfare; and 
 
 WHEREAS, City staff and police officers have been asked to address a significant number 
of citizen complaints regarding public safety concerns associated with aggressive panhandling 
activities, and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the residents of the City of Evans that this ordinance 
be enacted.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF EVANS, COLORADO: 
 

Section 1.  Section 9.16.055 of the Evans Municipal Code shall be enacted to read as follows: 
9.16.055 - Panhandling.  

(a) Definitions. For the purpose of this Chapter: 
Aggressive panhandling shall mean:  

a. Continuing to solicit from a person after the person has given a negative 
response to such soliciting;  

b. Intentionally touching or causing physical contact with another person without 
that person's consent in the course of soliciting;  

c. Intentionally blocking or interfering with the safe or free passage of a 
pedestrian or vehicle by any means, including unreasonably causing a 
pedestrian or vehicle operator to take evasive action to avoid physical contact;  

d. Using violent or threatening gestures toward a person solicited, or persisting in 
closely following or approaching the person being solicited, with the intent of 
asking that person for money or other things of value, after the person solicited 
has been solicited and informed the solicitor by words or conduct that such 



 2

person does not want to be solicited or does not want to give money or 
anything of value to the solicitor;  

e. Using profane or abusive language which is likely to provoke an immediate 
violent reaction from the person being solicited;  

f. Soliciting money from anyone who is waiting in line for tickets, for entry to a 
building or for another purpose; or  

g. Approaching or following a person for solicitation as part of a group of two (2) 
or more persons, in a manner and with conduct, words or gestures intended or 
likely to cause a reasonable person to fear imminent bodily harm or damage to 
or loss of property or otherwise to be intimidated into giving money or other 
thing of value.  

Automated teller machine shall mean a device, linked to a financial institution's 
account record, which is able to carry out transactions, including but not limited to account 
transfers, deposits, cash withdrawals, balance inquiries and mortgage and loan payments.  

Automated teller machine facility shall mean the area comprised of one (1) or more 
automatic teller machines, and any adjacent space which is made available to banking 
customers after regular banking hours.  

Financial institution shall mean any bank, industrial bank, credit union or savings and 
loan as defined in Title 11, C.R.S.  

Public place shall mean a place to which the public or a substantial group of persons 
has access, including but not limited to any street, sidewalk, highway, parking lot, plaza, 
transportation facility, school, place of amusement, park or playground.  

Soliciting or panhandling, for purposes of this Section, are interchangeable and mean 
any solicitation made in person requesting an immediate donation of money. Purchase of an 
item for an amount far exceeding its value, under circumstances where a reasonable person 
would understand that the purchase is in substance a donation, is a donation for the purpose 
of this Chapter. Panhandling does not include passively standing or sitting with a sign or 
other indication that one is seeking donations, without addressing any solicitation to any 
specific person other than in response to an inquiry by that person.  

(b) Prohibited acts. 
(1) No person shall engage in aggressive panhandling in any public place. 
(2) No person shall panhandle on private or residential property after having been 

asked to leave or refrain from panhandling by the owner or other person lawfully 
in possession or control of such property.  

(3) No person shall panhandle within twenty (20) feet of public toilets. 
(4) No person shall panhandle within twenty (20) feet of any automated teller 

machine; provided, however, that, when an automated teller machine is located 
within an automated teller machine facility, such distance shall be measured from 
the entrance or exit of the facility.  



 3

(5) No person shall panhandle in any public transportation vehicle, within twenty (20) 
feet of any bus stop or in any public parking lot or structure.  

(6) No person shall panhandle within twenty (20) feet of an entrance to a building. 
(7) No person shall panhandle within twenty (20) feet of any pay telephone; provided 

that, when a pay telephone is located within a telephone booth or other facility, 
such distance shall be measured from the entrance or exit of the telephone booth 
or facility.  

(8) No person shall solicit or panhandle after dark, which shall mean one-half (½) 
hour after sunset until one-half (½) hour before sunrise.  

(9) No person shall solicit or panhandle within twenty (20) feet of any licensed liquor 
establishment. Licensed liquor establishment means any business that has a 
license to sell malt, vinous or spirituous liquors under Title 12, C.R.S., or Chapter 
5.08 of this Code.  

(c) A violation of this Section is a misdemeanor infraction and shall be punishable under 
Chapter 1.16 of this Code.  

 
Section 2.   Publication and Effective Date.   This Ordinance, after its passage on final 

reading, shall be numbered, recorded, published, and posted as required by the City Charter and the 
adoption, posting, and publication shall be authenticated by the signature of the Mayor and City 
Clerk, and by the Certificate of Publication.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon final 
passage. 
 
 Section 3.     Severability.   If any article, section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of 
this Ordinance is held to be unconstitutional or invalid for any reason such decision shall not affect 
the validity or constitutionality of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.  The City Council 
hereby declares that it would have passed this ordinance and each part or parts thereof irrespective of 
the fact that any one part or parts be declared unconstitutional or invalid. 

 
 Section 4.   Repeal.   Existing ordinances or parts of ordinances covering the same matters 
embraced in this ordinance are hereby repealed and all ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent 
with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed except that this repeal shall not affect or 
prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done or committed in violation of 
any ordinance hereby repealed prior to the effective date of this ordinance. 
 
 
INTRODUCED AND PASSED AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF EVANS ON THIS 3RD DAY OF AUGUST, 2015. 

 
 
ATTEST:      CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 

 
 
______________________________________ By:      
Raegan Robb, City Clerk      John L. Morris, Mayor 



 4

PASSED AND ADOPTED ON A SECOND READING THIS 18TH DAY OF AUGUST,   2015.  
 
 

ATTEST:      CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 
 
______________________________________ By:      
Raegan Robb, City Clerk      John L. Morris, Mayor 
 
 



 
 

 COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
  
 
DATE: August 18, 2015  
 
AGENDA ITEM: 8.A 

 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 24-2015 - Approving Memorandum of Understanding 

between Weld County School District 6 and City of Evans for the planning 
and construction of a non-potable irrigation system for Prairie Heights 
Middle School  

 
PRESENTED BY: N. Zach Ratkai, Flood Recovery, Building and Neighborhood Services 
 Manager  
________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The attached Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) formalizes an agreement between Weld 
County School District 6 and City of Evans for the planning and construction of a non-potable 
irrigation system for Prairie Heights Middle School. By entering into the MOU we now satisfy a 
required provision of the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) entered into between the City and the 
District last spring.  
 
The MOU is intended to outline formalization District 6’s plans for design, construction and 
implementation of the Non-potable irrigation system. Additionally, the MOU outlines warranty 
period and future ownership of the system by the City of Evans.  
  
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
District 6 will pay a higher water rate to the City for usage of treated water for irrigation purposes 
until such time non-potable water will be available. Once complete, the standard water rate for both 
treated and non-treated water will apply to the school as amended through ordinance.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the resolution.  
 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

“I move to adopt Resolution No. 24-2015.” 
“I move to deny adoption of Resolution No. 24-2015.” 

 



CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 24-2015 
 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN WELD COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT SIX, AND THE CITY OF 
EVANS, COLORADO FOR THE DESIGN  AND CONSTRUCTION OF A NON-
POTABLE IRRIGATION SYSTEM FOR PRAIRIE HEIGHTS MIDDLE SCHOOL 
 
 
WHEREAS, Weld County School District 6 and the City of Evans entered into an 

Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA); and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the IGA, a memorandum of understanding outlining provisions for 

the installation, ownership and maintenance of a non-potable water system was required; and 
 
WHEREAS, in an effort to conserve treated water usage within the City of Evans.  

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
EVANS, COLORADO, the attached Memorandum of Understanding between Weld County School 
Distrct 6 and the City of Evans is hereby approved and the Mayor is authorized and directed to 
execute said MOU on behalf of the City.  

 
 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the 

City of Evans on this 18th day of August, 2015. 
 

 
 
ATTEST:       CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 
                                                By:      

City Clerk        Mayor 



 
NON‐POTABLE WATER SERVICE AGREEMENT 

(Prairie Heights Middle School) 
 

  WHEREAS, the City of Evans finds it is in the best interests of the citizens of Evans and its water 

and sewer customers to maximize potable water resources by minimizing the need to use potable water 

for irrigation purposes; and 

  WHEREAS, the City has the ability to provide non‐potable irrigation water to certain sites within 

the city for irrigation purposes; and 

  WHEREAS, the parties signing below wish to take advantage of such a non‐potable irrigation 

system for the new Prairie Heights Middle School being built by Weld County School District 6;  

  NOW THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL CONDITIONS CITED BELOW, THE 

PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. DEFINITIONS: 

a. “non‐potable system” is the ditch headgate, conveyance, storage, and pumping 

facilities used in the provision of non‐potable water to the District’s meter. 

b. “irrigation system” is the sprinklers, pipes, and controllers downstream of the 

District’s meter.    

  2. LOCATION:  The City of Evans (hereinafter the “City”), a Colorado home rule municipality 

agrees with Weld County School District 6 (hereinafter the “District”) to provide non‐potable irrigation 

water to the following site: 13.7 acres in the NW ¼ of Section 28, Township 5N, Range 66W.  The District 

agrees to limit non‐potable irrigation under this agreement to the defined area. 

  3. SEASON:  Non‐potable irrigation water will be available generally Spring through Fall of each 

year, depending upon the Greeley‐Loveland Irrigation Company (GLIC). District will be notified a 

minimum of ten working days prior to activation of the non‐potable service. The City will provide 

irrigation system demands using non‐potable ditch water when available.  Potable water supply will be 

used when non‐potable supply is unavailable, during the so called “shoulder months”.  There is no cost 

increase for the use of potable water supply when said supply is used as a secondary supply service for 

irrigation purposes.   

  4.  CAPACITY:  The City agrees to provide non‐potable water at a minimum of 100 psi (pounds 

per square inch) and 650 gpm (gallons per minute) to the District’s meter.  

  5. OPERATIONS:  The City, or one of its representatives, shall be solely responsible for the 

operation, maintenance, repair and replacement of the non‐potable system.  Operations and 

maintenance shall include start‐up, shut‐down, repair, control adjustments, and cleaning. The City shall 

maintain the non‐potable system such that disrupted water service is restored within four hours 90% of 



2 
 

the time.  System operation and maintenance activities shall not extend downstream of the District’s 

meter into the District’s irrigation system.  

  6.   CROSS‐CONNECTION:  Because the District wishes to connect the irrigation system directly 

to the City’s potable drinking water system as a back‐up, there shall be a physical disconnection such as 

a spool piece, approved by the City, between the City’s potable and non‐potable systems to prevent 

cross‐contamination by the non‐potable system.  Use of backflow prevention devices or any hard‐piped 

valve device for this purpose are prohibited. 

  7. RAW WATER OWNERSHIP:  All water used in the non‐potable system shall be and shall remain 

the sole property of the City.  The City may provide carriage of water owned by others as part of this 

non‐potable water service agreement solely at the City’s discretion. The District acquires no water rights 

as a result of this agreement.  

8. RAW WATER SUPPLY:  With dedication of 5.2 shares of Greeley and Loveland Company stock, 

2.5 shares of which are dedicated for non‐potable use, the District has satisfied the raw water required 

for this property, in accordance with paragraph 6 of the Intergovernmental Agreement (“IGA”) dated 

April 13, 2015.  The District intends to institute several water conservation features in the design and 

operation of the potable and non‐potable systems. As a consequence, water use at the facility may be 

significantly lower than initially calculated by the City. After two years of full operation, the City agrees 

to review the facility’s water demand. If the water use is significantly, i.e. greater than 10%, below the 

amount of raw water dedicated, the City agrees to apply the excess raw water credits to a property 

within the City of the District’s choosing.  

  9. WATER RATES:  Non‐potable water charges shall be set annually by the City. The 2015 non‐

potable water charge is $2.33 per thousand gallons plus a base service delivery charge of $17.50 per 

month. The service delivery charge shall apply only when the non‐potable system is in operation.  

10. TIERED RATES:  The District has established a monthly potable water allotment based on the 

potable water tap purchased equivalent to 74.7 EQRs. If the District’s monthly potable water usage for 

this site exceeds the monthly potable water allotment in any given month, the District will pay a 

surcharge equal to the second tier water rate established annually by the City.  The second tier water 

rate for 2015 is $5.67 per thousand gallons.    

  11.  SYSTEM OWNERSHIP:  The District shall design and construct the non‐potable system to City 

standards and have the system ready for operation for the 2016 irrigation season. The District shall 

dedicate the non‐potable system to the City after the warranty period of two years.  By dedication of 

the non‐potable system to the City, the District has satisfied any system development fees required by 

the City for non‐potable service. The District shall purchase and install the type and size of non‐potable 

meter specified by the City.   

12. SIGNS AND DROUGHT RESTRICTIONS:  All sites using non‐potable water shall display highly 

visible signs warning “Ditch Water – Do Not Drink”, as required by the City’s Utilities Director.  Drought 

restrictions imposed on the District’s supply will be no more stringent than imposed on City parks.  



3 
 

  13. TERM:  This agreement is perpetual unless cancelled in writing by either party with two 

years notice.  

  14. DISPUTE RESOLUTION:  Disputes arising about this contract shall be resolved using Colorado 

State law.  Written notice of default or cancellation shall be provided to: 

    (CITY)  City of Evans      (District)  Superintendent  
      Utilities Director        Weld County School District 6 
      1100 37th Street         1025 9th Avenue 
      Evans, CO 80620         Greeley, CO 80631 
 
  15. PAYMENT:  Payment due dates and City remedies for non‐payment shall be applied to non‐

potable systems in the same way they are applied to the potable water system. 

  16. SCOPE OF AGREEMENT:  This agreement and the Intergovernmental Agreement between 

the parties dated April 13, 2015, are the full and complete agreement between the parties with regard 

to non‐potable water service to the District’s Prairie Heights Middle School.  No other agreements or 

oral representations have been made. The contract can be amended only by written amendment signed 

by the parties hereto. 

DATED: ___________________ 

 

CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO        DISTRICT – Weld County School District 6 

 

_______________________        ________________________ 

    

 

 

 

 



 
 

  
 CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
 
DATE: August 18, 2015  
 
AGENDA ITEM: 8.B   
 
SUBJECT: Approval of Resolution No. 25-2015 Authorizing the Application 

for an Energy and Mineral Impact Grant from the Colorado 
Department of Local Affairs  

 
PRESENTED BY: N. Zach Ratkai, Flood Recovery, Building and Neighborhood 

Services Manager  
 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
 
As a result of the 2013 and, subsequently, the 2015 flood events, 49th Street and Industrial Parkway 
have been rendered severely damaged and impassible. After the 2013 flood event, the City repaired 
and maintained this area to a temporary level, with the 2015 rain and flooding essentially 
eliminating the temporary repairs and causing additional damage to the roadway.   
   
The City is looking to apply for a grant of $1,349,022 to cover a supplement to the 2013 damage 
costs, repair of 2015 damages (for which disaster assistance is not available) and fix severe 
damages on 49th Street west of the flood damaged portion to 35th Avenue. A budget amendment 
to the General Fund will be required if awarded. 
 
FINANCIAL: 
There are no anticipated financial expenditures from the City of Evans. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
  
The City of Evans staff recommends that the City Council approve the grant application for the 
Energy and Mineral Impact Grant. 
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS:  
 
“I move to approve Resolution No. 25-2015.” 
 
“I move to deny the adoption of Resolution No. 25-2015” 



CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 25-2015 
 
 

A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING A GRANT APPLICATION TO                                                         
THE COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL AFFAIRS TO SECURE FUNDING THROUGH         

THE ENERGY IMPACT GRANT PROGRAM FOR PERMANENT REPAIR AND MITIGATION OF 
49TH STREET AND INDUSTRIAL PARKWAY 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Evans, Colorado, pursuant to Colorado statute and 
the Evans City Charter, is vested with the authority of administering the affairs of the City of Evans, 
Colorado; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Evans supports the need to complete permanent repairs for flood 
damaged roadways; and  
 

WHEREAS, the opportunity for late application to the August grant cycle for the department of 
local affairs was presented to city staff; and  
 

WHEREAS, 49th Street and Industrial Parkway serve as both vital regional commuter and energy 
industry transportation corridors; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Evans will be looking to make 49th Street a designated heavy truck route 
for the energy industry; and  

 
WHEREAS, the State of Colorado Department of Local Affairs is administering the Energy and 

Mineral Impact Assistant Program grant funds; and  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
EVANS, COLORADO AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The City Council hereby supports the Energy and Mineral Impact grant application for 
$1,349,022 from the State of Colorado Department of Local Affairs. 

 
2. The City Council of the City of Evans acknowledges that while the grant application does not 

mandate matching funds the City of Evans will need to allocate a proportional share of staff 
resources to fulfill the terms and obligations of said grant if awarded. 

 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
EVANS ON THIS 18th DAY OF AUGUST, 2015. 
 
 
ATTEST:                                  CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 
__________________________________                 BY: ______________________________ 
Raegan Robb, City Clerk              John Morris, Mayor 
 
 
 



 
 

 COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
  
 
DATE:   August 18, 2015 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  8.C 

 
SUBJECT:   Award of Bid - 2015 Asphalt Overlay Project 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Dawn Anderson, City Engineer 
 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The 2015 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Budget includes funding for surface repairs of 
streets within the community.  The area where this year’s funding is proposed to be utilized is on 
11th Avenue between 30th Street and Hwy 34.   
 
As per the City’s purchasing policies this project was advertised in the Greeley Tribune, the city 
website and Rocky Mountain E-Purchasing.  Bids were opened on August 5, 2015, with results 
as follows: 
 
 Contractor   Base Bid  

Martin Marietta  $ 154,566.85 
Asphalt Specialties  $ 179,817.25  

 
City staff has used the Paver software to identify, evaluate and analyze other overlay options 
throughout the city to utilize the full budget amount.   
 

  
FINANCIAL SUMMARY:  
 
The 2015 Capital Streets budget includes $325,000 for street surface repairs.   
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that City Council award the 2015 Asphalt Overlay Project to Martin Marietta 
Materials, Inc. in the amount not to exceed $325,000.00. 
  
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
 “I move to award the 2015 Asphalt Overlay Project to Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. 

and to authorize the Mayor’s signature on an agreement in the amount not to exceed 
$325,000.00.” 

 
 “I move to deny award of the 2015 Asphalt Overlay Project.”  



11
th 

Av
e

US Hwy 34

30th St

Hi
gh

 D
r

29th St Rd

State Farm Rd

Skyline Dr

Su
ns

et 
Dr

La
ke

sid
e D

r

Glendale Dr

30th St Rd

Unnamed Street

US Hwy 34

Unnamed Street

Vacinity Map:  City of  Evans 2015
11th Ave. Overlay Project

I
OL_11thAVE_2015 0 200100

Feet

* Locations are approximate*



 

   City Manager ‐ Monitoring Report 
August 18, 2015 

 
Below is a compellation of updates and projects that are either new  

or have changed since the last City Council meeting. 
 

 

 City Management & Administration 
Flood damage tour with Senator Gardner (Saturday, August 8th). The Mayor and several City staff 
accompanied the Senator as he viewed the flood damage from the September 2013 Flood and the new 
damage we received during the high runoff this spring. He was made aware of the significant 
difficulties the City is having in processing and reimbursement with the State and all the Federal 
agencies we are dealing with. Complements to Mayor Morris who did a great job talking with the 
Senator. Also thanks to staffers Kristan Williams, Chad Reischl, Elsa Caro, and Zach Ratkai for making 
this a successful effort. 
 
Resident Inquiries: I followed up with an issue from Mr. Steve Bernardo on irrigation problems in the 
Ashcroft Park area. City utility staff checked out the matter and talked with the resident who initiated 
the inquiry. The issue stems from only one meter for both the commercial property and the residential 
property. The meter and delivery infrastructure is all privately owned. Staff’s recommendation would 
be to install another meter for the residential area and  
 
 

 Communications   
o There were 9 National Night Out events around the City on August 4. The Council‐sponsored 

event at the pool had about 32 attendees. A short video clip of officers dancing in the street 
with residents at the Hunters Reserve event was posted on Facebook and enjoyed well over 
10,000 views and over 50 shares. 

o Fliers promoting the August 19 Town Hall Meeting were handed out at NNO events and the 
August 8 Community Safety Fair. A link to the online submission of questions for the meeting 
are on the homepage of the website and has been posted on Facebook (and will be several 
more times). To date, only 2 questions have been submitted. 

 

 Community Development 
 
Please see next page 
 

 
 



 

Building Department 
Construction Activity Comparative Analysis 

    July
2015 

July
2014 

YTD 
2015 

YTD
2014 

New Single 
Family Dwelling 
Units 

# of Permits 
 Valuation 

9 
1,384,917 

 

4 
743,192 

 

29 
5,140,837 

21 
3,482,961 

Single Family 
Footing & 
Foundation Only 

# of Permits 
 

2 
 

1 
 

9 
 

5 

New Multi‐
Family 
Dwellings Units 

# of Permits 
Valuation 

0  0 
 

0 
 

0 
 
 

Multi‐Family 
Footing & 
Foundation Only 

# of Permits 
Valuation 

0  0  0  0 

Residential 
Additions 
and Remodels 

# of Permits 
Valuation 

4 
43,140 

20 
167,907 

101 
761,511 

104 
799,850 

New Commercial 
Projects 

# of Permits 
Valuation 

0 
 

0 
 
 

0 
 

10 
6,804,462 

 

Commercial 
Footing & 
Foundation Only 

# of Permits 
Valuation 

0  0  0  0 

Commercial 
Additions and 
Remodels 

# of Permits 
Valuation 

4 
15,803 

2 
102,000 

 

19 
1,092,349 

18 
410,100 

Miscellaneous 
Permits 

# of Permits 
Valuation 

28 
139,463 

70 
318,900 

128 
507,980 

391 
2,153,332 

 

Mobile Home 
Permits 

# of Permits  5  3  36  29 
 
 

TOTALS  # of Permits 
Valuation 
 

50 
1,583,323 

 

100 
1,331,999 

 

322 
7,502,677 

578 
13,650,705 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Non-Residential Construction Projects 
In Progress 

 Project Type Location Description Stage 
A CDOT Commercial 1004 42nd St (Lot to 

the south) 
Park n Ride Under construction 

B Prairie Heights Middle 
School 

Commercial 3737 65th Ave. New Middle School to 
replace John Evans 

Under construction 

C America’s Best Value 
Inn 

Remodeling 
Bar/Restaurant 

area into 8 
hotel rooms 

800 31st St. New Hotel Rooms Under construction 

D Envirotech Services Electrical 
Installation 

6850 47th Ave. Electrical Service for 
modular office 

building/scale house 
and lighting for Fracking 
Sand Unloading Facility 

Under 
construction 

E Moser Funeral Home Building 
Addition 

3501 11th Avenue Addition to existing 
commercial building 

Under construction 

F El Toro Bravo Tenant Finish 2911 37th Street Grocery Store Under construction 

G Colorado Access Tenant Finish 3001 8th Avenue #120 Office Space Finals completed, 
C.O. pending fire 

department approval 
on fire alarm and 

sprinkler 

H Evans VFW Building 
Addition 

3501 State Street 1200 Sq. Ft. Shed Permit has been 
picked up 

I City of Evans Waste 
Water Treatment Plant 

Repairs 3323 1st Avenue Repairs from flood 
damage 

Under construction 

 
 

 
 

 Finance  
 
Please find the June sales tax update below: 

 
 As  far  as  the monthly  projection  goes, we  are 
$45,457 ahead of what we needed to collect this 
month to meet our annual budget. 
 

Category 2014 YTD 2015 YTD % Change

Base 1,110,416       1,266,327         14%

Commercial 968,288       956,344           ‐1%

Industrial 1,415,731       947,689           ‐33%

Utilities 365,826        390,199            7%

Motor Vehicle 728,703        669,894          ‐8%

Total 4,588,964    4,230,453        ‐8%

June 2015

Lodging  41,813           48,766             17%

June 2015



 
 

 
 Human Resources 

Please save the date for the City’s annual holiday luncheon and City Manager awards ceremony.  The 
employee holiday luncheon, hosted by the Employee Review Team, is scheduled for Friday, December 
11th from 11:30 a.m. – 1:30 p.m. at the Riverside Library and Cultural Center.  The City Manager awards 
ceremony is scheduled also on Friday, December 11th at the Riverside Library and Cultural Center from 
3:00 p.m. – 5:00 p.m.    
 
We had 100 participants complete the 3rd quarter wellness program requirements.  We had 92% of the 
City full‐time employees participate, excluding a few recent new hires and 68% of eligible spouses that 
are on the City’s insurance.  The Employee Review Team in conjunction with Human Resources staff is 
in the process of planning for the 2015‐2016 wellness program.  We will continue to focus on our 
wellness efforts and the impact that healthy lifestyles and reducing health risks has on the City and 
workforce. 

 
The City of Evans continues to seek ways to partner with neighboring agencies on training.  Weld 
County, City of Greeley and City of Evans will host Spanish training this fall.  There will be two levels of 
training offered:  Beginning/Introduction to Conversational Spanish and Intermediate to Advanced 
Level of Conversational Spanish.  This training will run for over a 12 week period of time with two 
weeks off for holidays for a total of 10 weeks of training.  The Introduction/Beginner class will meet 
Tuesdays from 3:30‐5pm starting September 15th – December 1st.   The Intermediate to Advanced class 
will meet Wednesdays from 3:30‐5pm starting September 16th – December 2nd.  Each agency will have 
10‐13 seats available and will maintain a waiting list as well.  For more information, please contact 
Human Resources.  
 
 

 Police 
 
Hiring Process – we are in backgrounds for candidates who have successfully passed the written, oral 
board, and physical tests. We currently have five openings and nine candidates. We hope to swear in 
new officers  in  late September or early October. We anticipate opening another hiring cycle for non‐
certified folks in September if we are unable to fill all of our openings. 
 



Safety Fair – the Safety Fair on August 8th was a great event! The dunking booth was a big hit with the 
kids.  Kudos  to  Officer  Michael  Yates  for  his  outstanding  efforts  in  again  organizing  a  wonderful 
community event.  
 
Master Officer – Detective Don Morgan attained the rank of Master Officer on 8/11/15 having completed 
Leadership 1.0 and an internal review process. Congratulations, Don!  
 
 

 Public Works 
‐ Engineering:  The 37th Street striping is to take place Thursday and Friday (13 & 14th).  City staff is 

working on narrowing the scope of the 2015 Asphalt Patch contract.  Pre‐construction is set to take place 
early next week.  Material has been ordered in order to upgrade to the pedestrian crossing poles on 11th 
Avenue in front of Union Colony   Elementary School.  We are working with Kolbe Striping to schedule this 
year’s striping work.  The 2015 Asphalt Overlay Project is currently out to bid; Bids were be opened on 
August 5th.  Engineering will be bidding the Hwy 85 Entryway Landscaping & Signage; Bids were opened on 
August 12th.  Staff is working with CDOT to get approval to bid the Hwy 85 Access Control Project at 37th 
Street. 

‐ Parks:  All mowing operations are currently on schedule.  We had one of our Wide Area Mowers breakdown 
and are waiting to hear what is wrong.  Village Park remodel has started.  We had an issue with someone 
taking our water for North Point.   Mike worked out that issue and Efren has determined that no          
damage was done to the pump. 

‐ Waste Water:  Staff is working on the Annual Collection System prevention main.  We have been continuing 
our regular meetings with the design team for the Consolidated WWTP Project.  Staff completed the CCTV 
inspection to locate four undocumented sanitary sewer taps in Tuscany. 
 

 
 
 



City Council Calendar 
August 2015 

 

AUGUST Event Location Time 

3 City Council Work Session &  
Regular City Council Meeting 

Evans City Complex Begins at 6:00 PM 

4 National Night Out Evans Neighborhoods Begins at 5:30 PM 

6 NFRMPO Council Meeting Johnstown Community 
Center, 101 Charlotte St.   

6:00 PM - 8:30 PM 

8 Senator Gardner Tours Evans Evans City Complex Begins at 10:30 AM 

8 Evans Safety & Awareness Fair Evans SAMs Club 9:00 AM - 2:00 PM 

13 85 Coalition Meeting Platteville Begins at 6:30 PM 

18 City Council Work Session &  
Regular City Council Meeting 

Evans City Complex Begins at 6:00 PM 

AUGUST 2015 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

      1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 

30 31      


	CALL TO ORDER
	PLEDGE
	ROLL CALL
	RECOGNITIONS
	AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	CONSENT AGENDA
	7.A Staff Report - Approval of Minutes
	08.03.2015 Draft Regular Meeting Minutes

	7.B Staff Report - 2015 Budget Rev #2
	Ordinance No. 626-15 - 2015 Budget Rev #2

	7.C Staff Report - Ordinance 627-15 Panhandling in Rights-of-way
	Ordinance No  627-15 - Panhandling in Rights of Way

	7.D Staff Report - Ordinance 628-15 Aggressive Panhandling
	Ordinance No  628-15 - Agressive Panhandling


	NEW BUSINESS
	8.A Staff Report - Reso 24-2015 PHMS MOU
	Resolution No. 24-2015 - MOU with CDOT
	Non-potable IGA Evans-SD6

	8.B Staff Report - Reso 25-2015 DOLA Grant
	Reso 25-2015 DOLA Grant

	8.C Staff Report -2015 Asphalt Overlay Award
	11th Ave OL Project 2015


	REPORTS
	City Manager
	08.18.15 Monitoring Report

	City Attorney

	AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION
	ADJOURNMENT
	CALENDAR
	August Calendar




